
 
 

 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

Meeting: HR COMMITTEE 
 

Date and Time: THURSDAY, 14 JANUARY 2021, AT 9.30 AM* 
 

Place: SKYPE MEETING - ONLINE 
 

Enquiries to: Email: andy.rogers@nfdc.gov.uk 
Andy Rogers Tel: 023 8028 5070 
 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
*Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public 
participation scheme: 
(a) immediately before the meeting starts, on items within the HR Committee’s 

terms of reference which are not on the public agenda; and/or 
(b) on individual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item.  

Speeches may not exceed three minutes.   
 
Anyone wishing to speak should contact the name and number shown above no later 
than 12.00 noon on 12 January 2021.  This will allow the Council to provide public 
speakers with the necessary joining instructions for the Skype Meeting. 
 
Bob Jackson  
Chief Executive 
 
Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA 
www.newforest.gov.uk 
 
This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
 Apologies 

 

1.   MINUTES  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2020 as a correct 
record. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified. 



 
 

 
2 

 
 

 
Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services 
prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 To note any issues raised during the public participation period. 
 

4.   HR UPDATE (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To receive an update on the HR Function since the last meeting.  
 

5.   PAY POLICY STATEMENT (Pages 9 - 18) 

 To consider the Pay Policy Statement for 2021/22. 
 

6.   KICKSTART PROGRESS  

 To receive an update on the KickStart Progress. 
 

7.   HEALTH & LEISURE REVIEW  

 To receive a presentation on the Health & Leisure Review. 
 

8.   ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 

 

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL – VIRTUAL MEETINGS 

Background 

This meeting is being held virtually with all participants accessing via Skype for Business. 

A live stream will be available on YouTube to allow the press and public to view meetings in 

real time and can also be found at the relevant meeting page on the Council’s website. 

Principles for all meetings 

The Chairman will read out Ground Rules at the start of the meeting for the benefit of all 

participants.  All normal procedures for meetings apply as far as practicable, as the new 

Government Regulations do not amend any of the Council’s existing Standing Orders. 

The Ground Rules for all virtual meetings will include, but are not limited to, the following:- 

 All participants are reminded that virtual public meetings are being broadcast live on 

YouTube and will be available for repeated viewing.  Please be mindful of your 

camera and microphone setup and the images and sounds that will be broadcast on 

public record. 

 All participants are asked to mute their microphones when not speaking to reduce 

feedback and background noise. Please only unmute your microphone and speak 

when invited to do so by the Chairman. 

 Councillors in attendance that have not indicated their wish to speak in advance of 

the meeting can make a request to speak during the meeting by typing “RTS” 

(Request to Speak) in the Skype chat facility.  Requests will be managed by the 

Chairman with support from Democratic Services.  The Skype chat facility should not 

be used for any other purpose. 



 
 

 
3 

 
 

 All participants should note that the chat facility can be viewed by all those in 

attendance. 

 All participants are asked to refer to the report number and page number within the 

agenda and reports pack so that there is a clear understanding of what is being 

discussed at all times. 

Voting 

When voting is required on a particular item, each councillor on the committee will be called 

to vote in turn by name, expressing their vote verbally.  The outcome will be announced to 

the meeting.  A recorded vote will not be reflected in the minutes of the meeting unless this 

is requested in accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders. 

By casting their vote, councillors do so in the acknowledgement that they were present for 

the duration of the item in question. 

Technology 

If individuals experience technical issues, the meeting will continue providing that it is 

quorate and it is still practical to do so.  The Chairman will adjourn the meeting if technical 

issues cause the meeting to be inquorate, the live stream technology fails, or continuing is 

not practical. 

Public Participation 

Contact details to register to speak in accordance with the Council’s Public Participation 

Procedures are on the front page of this agenda. 

In order to speak at a virtual meeting, you must have the facility to join a Skype for Business 

Meeting.  Joining instructions will be sent to registered speakers in advance of the meeting. 

The Council will accept a written copy of a statement from registered speakers that do not 

wish to join a Skype Meeting, or are unable to.  The statement will be read out at the 

meeting and should not exceed three minutes.  Please use the contact details on the agenda 

front sheet for further information. 

 
 

To: Councillors: Councillors: 
 

 
 Barry Rickman (Chairman) 

Mark Steele (Vice-Chairman) 
Hilary Brand 
Keith Craze 
 

Kate Crisell 
Michael Harris 
Maureen Holding 
Mahmoud Kangarani 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

Classification: INTERNAL ONLY 

HR COMMITTEE –  14 January 2021 
 
 

HR Update 
 
 

1.0    BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report gives an update on HR matters since the last HR Committee. These 

matters are in addition to the reactive caseload which includes job evaluations, 
restructuring advice, grievances, disciplinaries and sickness absence matters. 
 

1.2 We also continue to provide Payroll and HR Advisory services to the National 
Park Authority. 

 
 
2. ITRENT HR SYSTEM 
 
2.1    The final aspect of the HR system to go live was the performance module. 

Managers and employees are now able to conduct their performance reviews 
using the HR Hub. 

 
2.2   We have been able to support this module with an online video which is 

available for all to see. Feedback on this has been very positive. 
 
2.3 EMT will be receiving an update shortly on how well Services have been doing 

in recording their reviews. 
 
2.4 At the time of writing this report a total of 287 Reviews have been recorded in 

the system as either completed or partially completed. 
 
 
3.     FURLOUGH - Mid December 2020 
 
3.1    The closure of the Leisure centres again in November meant that we needed to 

furlough most of our Leisure employees for a four week period. 
 
3.2   All five leisure centres did reopen after the four weeks. Due to social distancing 

we have had to review many of classes including a different programme for group 
exercise instructors.  

 
3.3   At that time we still had 55 staff on furlough these are Yoga/Pilates Instructors, 

Activity Leaders and Gymnastic Instructors. 
 
3.4  We will review the position with Gymnastic Instructors in January when it is hoped 

that further clarification will be available with regards to cleaning of soft mats and 
other measures. 

 
3.5 FURLOUGH UPDATE - Late December 2020 
 

5

Agenda Item 4



 

2 

 

Classification: INTERNAL ONLY 

3.6 From December 26 NFDC was placed into tier 3 of the National Lockdown 
measures. This meant that we had to cease running the Group Exercise Classes 
with immediate effect. 

 
3.7 From 31 December NFDC were placed in Tier 4. From that point all five Leisure 

Centres have been closed to the public. 
 
3.8 This has resulted in almost all of the Leisure staff being placed back onto 

Furlough for the foreseeable future. 
 
 
4. INSTRUCTOR REVIEW 
 
4.1 The council has undertaken a review of our instructors taking into account social 

distancing measures and viability of classes for the next 18 months. 
 
4.2 As a result of the review we needed to cease running some of the previous 

programmes. 
 
4.3 A full consultation exercise was undertaken with Employee Side and staff. 
 
4.4 The conclusion was that some staff have been made redundant however many 

staff who lost some classes and could have taken redundancy chose to stay and 
continue working for the authority. 

 
 
5. LEISURE STAFF REVIEW 
 
5.1 A separate review was conducted which included Assistant Swimming Instructors 

and Trampoline Instructors. 
 
5.2 Similar to the Instructor review in point 4, we conducted a full consultation 

exercise with Employee Side and staff. 
 
5.3 As a result of the review, a number of staff have been made redundant. 
 
 
6. SHAREPOINT 
 
6.1 HR are one of two Service Areas to pilot the transition between Meridio and 

Sharepoint for document management. 
 
6.2 Considerable work has taken place to decide the structure moving forward in 

Sharepoint to ensure the correct access to confidential records. 
 
6.3 It is hoped that this will become live in the early part of next year. 
 
 
7. EXIT PAYMENT REFORMS 
 

6



 

3 

 

Classification: INTERNAL ONLY 

7.1   The statutory provisions governing exit payments to local government workers 
are in the process of reform. 

 
        This consists of three separate elements: 
 

1.   The implementation of a £95,000 cap on public sector exit payments, 
  including employer contributions to pension costs. The cap came into 
  effect on 4 November 2020. 

 
2.  Reform of the Discretionary Compensation Payments Regulations and 
  Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations to place additional 
  restrictions on severance payments and limit the amounts an employer 
  can contribute to pension strain costs where an employee aged 55 or 
  over draws their pension early as a result of exiting 

 
3.   Proposals to require high earners to repay severance payments if they 
  secure re-employment in the public sector within 12 months. 

 
7.2   The proposals to require high earners to repay exit payments if they return to 

the public sector have previously been consulted on but there has been no 
further indication of if and when this proposal will be implemented.  

7.3   Therefore, the two most important issues currently are the implementation of 
the £95,000 exit payment cap and the proposed reform of the Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Regulations and Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations. 

7.4   The Council’s Pay Policy Statement for 2021/2 has been amended to take 
account of the changes that have so far been implemented. 

 
8.0 BRIEF BITE SESSIONS 
 
8.1 Since the last HR Ctte we have run a further two sessions on Mental Health  
 and Wellbeing for Managers and a further session on Equalities. 
  
 
 
 
For further information contact:  
 
Name:  Heleana Aylett       
Title:   HR Service Manager      
Tel:   02380 285588        
E-mail: Heleana.aylett@nfdc.gov.uk 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM:  22 DECEMBER 2020 
HR COMMITTEE: 14 JANUARY 2021 
COUNCIL: 22 FEBRUARY 2021 
 

 
PAY POLICY STATEMENT 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to prepare a pay policy statement for each 

financial year.  The statement must be prepared and approved by the end of March each 
year. A recommended statement for 2021-22 is included at Appendix 1.  The statement 
details the policies in place from 1 April 2021. 

 
1.2 National Pay Award for 2021-22 is being negotiated nationally, once this has been 

agreed the attached Appendix 1 will be updated. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 A pay policy statement must set out the authority’s policies for the financial year relating 

to: 
 

(a) The remuneration of its chief officers, 
(b) The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees, and  
(c) The relationship between – 

(i) the remuneration of its chief officers, and 
(ii) the remuneration of its employees who are not chief officers. 
 
 

2.2 The statement must state – 
 

(a) The definition of “lowest paid employees” adopted by the authority for the purposes 
of the statement, and  

(b) The authority’s reasons for adopting that definition 
 
 
3.     EXIT PAYMENTS 
 
3.1 The statutory provisions governing exit payments to local government workers are in 

the process of reform. 
 
3.1.1 This consists of three separate elements: 

 The implementation of a £95,000 cap on public sector exit payments, including 
employer contributions to pension costs. The cap came into effect on 4 
November 2020. 

 Reform of the Discretionary Compensation Payments Regulations and Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations to place additional restrictions on 
severance payments and limit the amounts an employer can contribute to 
pension strain costs where an employee aged 55 or over draws their pension 
early as a result of exiting 

 Proposals to require high earners to repay severance payments if they secure re-
employment in the public sector within 12 months. 

 

9

Agenda Item 5



3.1.2 The proposals to require high earners to repay exit payments if they return to the 
public sector have previously been consulted on, but there has been no further 
indication of if, and when this proposal will be implemented. Therefore, the two most 
important issues currently are the implementation of the £95,000 exit payment cap 
and the proposed reform of the Discretionary Compensation Payments Regulations 
and Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. 

 
3.1.3 The Pay Policy Statement has amendments at point 22 and 23 to reflect changes so 

far. 
 
3.1.4 This Pay Policy Statement will be updated to take account of any further legislative 

changes as and when they occur. 

 
 
4 HR COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
4.1  The HR Committee will consider the matter on 14 January 2021.  The Committee’s 

comments will be reported to the Council on 22 February 2021. 
 
 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 That it be recommended to the Council that the Pay Policy Statement 2021-22 as set 
 out in Appendix 1 be approved. 

 
 
  

For further information please contact:     Background Papers 
Heleana Aylett        Pay Policy Statement 
Service Manager – Human Resources                             Council Feb 2020 
Tel: 023 80285588        
E-Mail: Heleana.aylett@nfdc.gov.uk 
 
Manjit Sandhu 
Executive Head of Resources 
Tel: 023 8028 5588 
E-Mail: Manjit.sandhu@nfdc.gov.uk 

 

10

mailto:Heleana.aylett@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:Manjit.sandhu@nfdc.gov.uk


 

 
 

New Forest District Council  

Pay Policy Statement Financial year 2021-22 

 
Background 

 
1.    The purpose of this Pay Policy Statement (“Pay Statement”) is to set out New Forest 

District Council’s pay policies relating to its workforce for the financial year 2021-22, 
including the remuneration of its Chief Officers and that of its lowest paid employees.  Once 
the Local Pay Award for 2021-22 has been agreed the Pay levels in this document will be 
amended accordingly. 

 
2.    The functions of appointment, dismissal and related matters for all employees below Chief 

Officer Level shall be dealt with by the Chief Executive and Executive Heads, or such other 
employees as may be authorised.  Standing Orders for General Procedures deal with 
procedures for appointing and dismissing employees at Chief Officer Level. 

 
3. With the exception of apprentices on the National Minimum Wage, pay for all staff, including 

Chief Officers, is formally discussed and consulted upon at the Employee Side Liaison 
Panel before recommendations are taken forward to the HR Committee who will make 
recommendations to Council. 

 
4. For the purposes of this Pay Statement and in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 

(“Localism Act”), staff employed by the Council have been separated into two groups: 
(a) Chief Officers as defined by the Localism Act  
(b) Employees who are not Chief Officers as defined by the Localism Act 

 
5. An “employee who is not a Chief Officer” refers to all staff that are not covered within the 

“Chief Officer” group as outlined below. This includes the “lowest paid employees”. In the 
context of the Council, the “lowest paid employees” are those employed at Band 1 on the 
District Council’s pay structure (this is appended as item 1).  

 
6. Section 43(2) of the Localism Act defines Chief Officers for the purposes of the Localism 

Act. The following roles within the Council fall within the definition “Chief Officers”: - 
 

    (a)  Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) 
    (b)  Monitoring Officer 
    (c) Section 151(Chief Finance Officer)  
    (d)      Non-Statutory Chief Officers (Executive Heads and Chief Planning Officer) 
    (e) Officers reporting directly to those officers falling within (a), (b), (c) and (d) above 

(Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy S151 Chief Finance Officer)  
 
Chief Officers as defined by the Localism Act 2011 

 
7. The Chief Executive’s pay is set in comparison with other district councils.   The Chief 

Officers below the Chief Executive are paid on Band 11 of the Council’s pay structure (the 
Band for each role is determined by a consistent job evaluation process), Chief Officer 
current salaries are outlined below:  
 

 

APPENDIX 1 

11



 

 
 

 
 
8. The Head of Paid Service salary range is detailed below, CX4 (£124,708) and                     

CX5 (£128,994) are available for exceptional performance: 
 

Spinal 
points 

Salary 

CX1 £114,198 

CX2 £117,731 

CX3 £121,371 

 
9. The Council has a duty to appoint a Returning Officer responsible for local government 

elections and has decided that this role be carried out by the Chief Executive.  The 
Returning Officer fees are regarded as a special responsibility payment in relation to 
independent duties carried out. 

 
10. The fees and charges for European, UK Parliamentary and Police Commissioner elections 

and National Referendums are set by external bodies.  The scale of fees and expenses for 
County, District, Parish and Town Council elections will be set in partnership with the 
County Council and other Hampshire local authorities to ensure uniformity and will be 
submitted to General Purposes and Licensing Committee. 

11. The Monitoring Officer, Executive Heads, Chief Planning Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
salary range (Band 11) is detailed below, spinal point 73 (£85,396) and spinal point 74 
(£87,897) are available for exceptional performance: 

 

Spinal 
points 

Salary 

70 £78,316 

71 £80,594 

72 £82,960 

12. The Executive Head of Operations also takes on the additional role of Deputy Chief 
Executive and receives an additional payment of £6,000 per annum. 

13. The salary range (Band 10A) is detailed below. Currently there are no posts within this 
salary band. Spinal Point 67 (£71,942) and spinal point 68 (£73,992) are available for 
exceptional performance.  

 

Spinal 
points 

Salary 

64 £66,275 

65 £68,088 

66 £69,981 

 

12



 

 
 

14. The Deputy Monitoring Officer will be paid on band 10 (see point 15 below). The Deputy 
S151 (Chief Financial Officer) will be paid on Band 9.  

 

15. The Service Managers salary range (Band 10) is detailed below: 

 

Spinal 
points 

Salary 

58 £57,522 

59 £58,729 

60 £59,939 

61 £61,238 

62 £62,878 

63 £64,540 

16.  The Council reviews its terms and conditions and pay levels regularly. The Chief Executive, 
Executive Heads and Service Managers pay was reviewed in 2015/16.   

17.  Pay awards are considered annually for all staff including Chief Officers.  The outcome of 
the national consultations by the Local Government Employers in negotiation with the Trade 
Unions is applied unless this distorts the councils local pay structure. 

 
18.  The Chief Executive, Chief Officers’ and Service Managers’ performance and pay 

progression is reviewed annually on the achievement of clear organisational objectives.  
Incremental progression does not apply to these roles.  The Chief Executives’ annual 
review is undertaken by a member panel (comprising of the Leader of the Council, plus 
three other Portfolio Holders to be determined by the Leader).  

 
19.  The Council recognises that Chief Officers sometimes incur necessary expenditure in 

carrying out their responsibilities e.g. travel costs.  Chief Officers will be reimbursed for 
reasonable expenses incurred on council business in accordance with local Terms and 
Conditions. 
 

20.  Chief Officers as a result of their employment are eligible to join the Local Government 
Pension Scheme in the same way as other employees. The pension’s policy statement is 
appended as item 2 to this statement applies to all employees including chief officers. 

  
21.  All employees including Chief Officers with more than 2 years continuous service will be 

entitled to a redundancy payment.  If employees are aged at least 55 they are also 
automatically entitled to the immediate payment of pension benefits if they are retired on 
the grounds of redundancy.  THIS IS CURRENTLY UNDER REVIEW NATIONALLY. This 
policy will be updated to take account of any changes to legislation which occur as a result. 
The redundancy payments are based on actual weekly pay.  See point 22 below. The 
number of weeks individuals are entitled to is based on the statutory redundancy grid which 
provides for a maximum of 30 weeks.   A multiplier of 1.5 is used to support efficient 
organisational change. The Council scheme therefore provides for an entitlement of up to a 
maximum of 45 weeks based on length of service and age.  The Council operates one 
redundancy scheme for both voluntary and compulsory redundancies.  All redundancies are 
subject to a full Business case which requires a maximum financial payback of 3 years. 

13



 

 
 

 
22.  The Exit Payment Reforms have introduced new criteria which we will take account of when 

calculating any redundancy pay. These are: 

 The annual salary which the payment is based on must not exceed £80,000. 

 The overall redundancy payment must not exceed 15 months’ salary. 

 The number of weeks used as the multiplier must not exceed three per year of service. 
 

23.  The Council practice is not to re-employ Chief Officers who have received a redundancy or 
severance package on leaving the council. 
 

24.  In accordance with the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 
Transparency, pay and benefits information for staff paid over £58,200 are published.  This 
information is contained on ‘Transparency and Open Government’ pages on the Council’s 
external website.   

 
 

Employees who are not Chief Officers as defined by the Localism Act 
 

25.  These employees are all paid on the Council’s pay structure on Bands 1-9.  Each employee 
will be on one of the 9 Bands based on the job evaluation of their role.  Each Band consists 
of 1,3, 5 or 6 spinal points. Pay progression within the Band is subject always to good 
performance. 

 
26. Each “lowest paid employee” is paid within the salary range for Band 1.  All other 

employees are paid within the salary range for the Band of their role i.e. (2-9). In very 
exceptional cases individuals are paid a pay supplement.   

 
27. Employees new to the Council will normally be appointed to the first spinal point of the 

salary range for their Band.  Where the candidate’s current employment package would 
make the first spinal point of the salary range unattractive (and this can be demonstrated by 
the applicant in relation to current earnings) or where the employee already operates at a 
level commensurate with a higher salary, a different spinal point in starting salary may be 
considered by the recruiting manager.  This will be within the salary range for the Band. The 
candidate’s level of skill and experience should be consistent with that of other employees 
in a similar position on the salary range.   

 
28.  Employees’ performance during the year is reviewed within the Council’s performance 

management arrangements and pay progression within the Band is subject always to good 
performance.   
 

29. Pay awards are considered annually for staff. For all staff up to and including the Chief 
Executive the outcome of the national consultations by the Local Government Employers in 
negotiation with the Trades Unions is applied.  
 

30 The Council believes in rewarding outstanding performance.  It operates this through a 
system of bonus payments which are designed to reward outstanding performance at the 
time it occurs.  The size of the award paid to an employee will be commensurate with the 
work being rewarded.  All bonuses are subject to Executive Management Team approval. 

 
31 The Council recognises that employees sometimes incur necessary expenditure in carrying 

out their responsibilities, for example travel costs. Employees will be reimbursed for 

14



 

 
 

reasonable expenses incurred on Council business in accordance with the Council’s local 
Terms and Conditions. 

 
32. Band 9 staff are entitled to the lease car cash alternative. The Essential User allowance 

only applies to jobs that are visiting officers or jobs that manage across more than one site 
(average of 2500 miles per annum) and agreed by the Service Manager.  

 
33. All employees as a result of their employment are eligible to join the Local Government 

Pension Scheme. Details of the Council’s pension policy are appended as item 2 of this 
Pay Statement. 

 
34. The Council’s redundancy scheme is detailed in paragraphs 21 and 22 and this applies to 

all employees.   
 

35. The Council practice is not to re-employ staff who have received a redundancy or 
severance package on leaving the Council; any request to do so would require specific 
approval from the appropriate Executive Head.  
 

36. In accordance with The Local Government Association guidance on the Government’s 
requirement for reporting remuneration relationships (the ratio between the highest paid 
employee and the median average earnings across the organisation as a multiple). Based 
on current salaries for 1st April 2020 this has been calculated as follows: 

 

Chief Executive Remuneration  £121,371 

Employees Median average remuneration  £23,214 

Ratio 5.23 

 
 
 

 

15



 

 
 

Item 2 
 
Pension Policy Statement 
 
Under the Local Government Pension Scheme, the Council is required to publish a written 
statement of policy in relation to pensions. 
 
Any decision that has a financial impact will be subject to a Business Case, where a payback 
period of no more than three years, is achievable. 
 
The statutory provisions governing exit payments to local government workers are in the 
process of reform including the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. 

 
 
1. Regulation 16 (2e)(4d) Shared cost additional pension contributions 

 
Discretion not exercised. (Decision at Council July 2014)  
 

2. Regulation 30(6) Power to allow flexible retirement 
 
Discretion exercised in line with Policy agreed from 1 May 2015 (Decision at Council April 
2015) 
 

3. Regulation 30 (8) Waiving of actuarial reductions on compassionate grounds 
 
Discretion exercised provided there is no cost to the Council (Decision at Council July 
2014) 
 

4. Regulation 31 Power to award additional pension 
 
Discretion not exercised. (Decision at Council July 2014) 

 
5. (LGPS Regulations 2014 (Transitional provisions, savings and amendments – 

paragraph 2 (2) of schedule 2)) – Switching on the 85 year rule 
 

Discretion not exercised (Decision at Council July 2014) 
 
6. Regulation B30(2)(5)B30A(3)(5) Post – 31 March 2008 /pre – 1 April 2014 leavers 

early payment of pension 
 

Discretion not exercised (Decision at Council July 2014) 
 

7. Membership aggregation Regulation 22 (7)(b), (8)(b) 
 
            Discretion not exercised (Decision at Council July 2014) 

 
8. Transfers of Pension Rights (Administration Regulation 100 (6) 
 

Discretion not exercised (Decision at Council July 2014) 
 

16



 

 
 

9. Pension Contribution Bands (Regulations 9 and 10 of LGPS Regulations 2013) 
 
Discretion is exercised (Decision at Council July 2014)  - The Council’s policy is to 
review an employee’s contributions band when there is a contractual change to the 
member’s salary or hours at some point during the year, when the change is permanent.  
Any changes in variable pay (i.e. overtime) will only be reviewed once on 1st April each 
year. 

 
10. Assumed Pensionable Pay and ‘regular lump sum’ (regulations 21(4)(a), 21(4)(b) 

and 21(5) of the LGPS Regulations 2013) 
  
            Discretion not exercised (Decision at Council July 2014) 
 

11. Election of Early Payment of Benefits  
  

The Council’s Early Retirement Policy came into effect from 1 July 2009 and applies to all 
employees at least 55 and over.  Early Retirement can only occur in the following 
circumstances: 

REDUNDANCY – for employees where employment is terminated for reasons of 
redundancy. 

 
 

EFFICIENCY - for employees where early retirement is in the interests of the efficiency of 
the service. 

 
 
 
 

17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 HR Update
	5 Pay Policy Statement
	Pay Policy Statement 2021-22


